
   Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 
 

Thursday, November 12, 2020 
Closed Session - 6:00 PM 

Regular Session - 7:00 PM 
 

On March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the 
Ralph M. Brown Act in order to allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings completely 
telephonically or by other electronic means. Pursuant to the Shelter-in-Place Orders issued by the San 

Mateo County Health Officer on March 16, 2020 and March 31,2020, the statewide Shelter-in-Place Order 
issued by the Governor in Executive Order N-33-20 on March 19, 2020, and the CDC’s social distancing 
guidelines which discourage large public gatherings, the Council Chamber will not be open to the public 

for this Town of Colma City Council Meeting. The purpose of these orders was to provide the safest 
environment for Council Members, staff and the public while allowing for public participation. 

 
Members of the public may view the meeting by attending, via telephone or computer,  

the Zoom Meeting listed below: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261  
Passcode: 074407 
 
Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 
One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (Houston) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc  
 
Members of the public may provide written comments by email to the City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov 
before or during the meeting. Emailed comments should include the specific agenda item on which you 

are commenting or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda. The length of the 
emailed comment should be commensurate with the three minutes customarily allowed for verbal 

comments, which is approximately 250-300 words.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


   Page 2 of 3 
 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00PM 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with 
Labor Negotiators. 
 

Agency Negotiator:   Brian Dossey, City Manager 
Austris Rungis, IEDA 

Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 
Communications/Records Association 

Unrepresented Employees:  All 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00PM 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION 

• Halloween House Decorating Contest Winners 
• Introduction of New Chief of Police John Munsey  
• Veterans Day Recognition  
• Annual Employee Recognition   

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 28, 2020 Regular Meeting. 
3. Motion to Approve the Report of Checks Paid for October 2020. 
4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending the Colma Salary Schedule for Chief of Police Position. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

5. SAFE STORAGE OF FIREARMS ORDINANCE 
Consider: Motion to Introduce and Waive Further Reading of an Ordinance Adding Colma Municipal 
Code Subchapter 2.09 to Require Safe Storage of Firearms in a Residence. 

STUDY SESSION 

6. BROWN ACT REFRESHER AND UPDATE 
This item is for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting. 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       
City Manager          



   Page 3 of 3 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review on the Town’s website 
www.colma.ca.gov or at Colma Town Hall, 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA. Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley, City Clerk at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov. 

 
Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 
 

http://www.colma.ca.gov/
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with
Labor Negotiators

Agency Negotiators: Brian Dossey, City Manager 
Austris Rungis, IEDA 

Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 
Communications/Records Association 

Unrepresented Employees: All 

There is no staff report for this item. 

Item #1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Minutes – Regular Meeting 10.28.20 Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Meeting Held Remotely via Zoom.us 
Wednesday, October 28, 2020 

7:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 
Mayor John Irish Goodwin called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
Council Present – Mayor John Irish Goodwin, Vice Mayor Diana Colvin, Council Members 
Helen Fisicaro, Raquel Gonzalez and Joanne F. del Rosario were all present. 
Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, Administrative Services Director Pak Lin, 
Assistant City Attorney Martin de los Angeles, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, City 
Engineer Cyrus Kianpour, City Planner Michael Laughlin, Sustainability Programs Manager 
Kathleen Gallagher, Associate Planner Jonathan Kwan, and City Clerk Caitlin Corley, were in 
attendance.  
The Mayor announced, “Welcome to another of our completely remote Council Meeting. A 
few notes about tonight’s meeting: We are accepting public comments through email—
please email ccorley@colma.ca.gov to submit a public comment. You can also use the chat 
function to chat directly to our city clerk and she will be able to let us know that you would 
like to make a comment when your item comes up in the agenda. Thank you.”  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Goodwin asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. He 
asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Vice Mayor Colvin moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor  
Diana Colvin  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  

5 0 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mayor Goodwin opened the public comment period at 7:04 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward to speak, he closed the public comment period. 

Item #2



Minutes – Regular Meeting 10.28.20   Page 2 of 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 28, 2020 Regular Meeting. 
2. Motion Accepting the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Annual Investment Report Through June 30, 

2020. 
Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to approve the Consent Calendar item #1 - 2; the 
motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

3. CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 2030 UPDATE 
Sustainability Programs Manager Kathleen Gallagher and Associate Planner Jonathan Kwan 
presented the staff report. Mayor Goodwin opened the public comment period at 7:50 p.m. 
and seeing no one come forward to speak, closed the public comment period. Council 
discussion followed. 
 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Accept the Climate Action Plan 2030 Update; the 
motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

 
Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

At 8:11 p.m., the Mayor invited Victoria Magbilang, Executive Director Daly City Public 
Library Associates, to make a comment as she missed the Public Comment Period due to 
technical difficulties. She announced the DCPLA’s new Youth Poet Laureate program, which 
is open to Colma youth who attend school in Daly City.  

 

 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 10.28.20   Page 3 of 4 

4. CAPITAL PROJECT UPDATE FOR FY 2019-20 AND AMENDMENT FOR FY 2020-21 
Administrative Services Director Pak Lin presented the staff report. Mayor Goodwin opened 
the public comment period at 8:38 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, closed 
the public comment period. Council discussion followed. 
 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Amending the Fiscal Year 
2020-21 Capital Improvement Budget to $3,062,788, Including Closing Out 10 Capital 
Projects, Transferring $86,265 to General Plan Update Project, Returning $86,062 of 
Unspent Funding Back to Fleet Replacement Fund 61; and Drawing Down On Capital 
Reserve Fund 31 By $3,085 to Supplement Budget Shortfall in the General Plan Update 
Project; the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Colvin and carried by the following vote: 
 
Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

5. FY 2019-20 FINANCIAL UPDATE AND FY 2020-21 BUDGET AMENDMENT  
Administrative Services Director Pak Lin presented the staff report. Mayor Goodwin opened 
the public comment period at 9:15 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, closed 
the public comment period. Council discussion followed. 
 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Appropriating Funds and 
Amending Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year 2020-21; the motion was seconded by Council 
Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 
 
Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

Due to the Veterans Day holiday on November 11th, the next Regular City Council Meeting 
will be on Thursday, November 12, 2020 at 7:00pm and it will be held remotely. 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 10.28.20   Page 4 of 4 

REPORTS  

City Manager Brian Dossey gave an update on the following topics: 
 There will be a Veteran’s Recognition at Veterans Village on Tuesday, November 

10th at 11am. There will be 9 new names added to the Town’s Veteran Plaque.  
 There will be a Closed Session on Thursday, November 12, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 There are 40 families registered for the Town’s Trick or Treat Drive Thru event.  
 Early Voting at the Colma Community Center opens on Saturday, October 31, 2020. 
 The November 25, 2020 Council Meeting will be cancelled.  

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY 
Mayor Goodwin adjourned the meeting at 9:29 p.m. in memory of Alice Masini, longtime 
community member. She was known for creating many of the colors of primrose plants at 
the world’s largest primrose ranch which was located where Lucky Chances is today. The 
Masini family were well known in Colma and Daly City. She was very helpful when we were 
doing Colma’s 90th anniversary video and shared many stories and photos with us. 



Item #3









































Staff Report re Salary Schedule Update – Chief of Police  Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: November 12, 2020 
SUBJECT: Salary Schedule Update – Chief of Police 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE COLMA SALARY SCHEDULE FOR CHIEF OF POLICE 
POSITION 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

With the conclusion of the Chief of Police recruitment, the Town’s salary schedule needs to 
reflect the City Council actions on July 8, 2020. The Council's actions include the establishment 
of a new step and pay structure for the Chief of Police. The attached Exhibit A to the Resolution 
includes the updated steps and pay rates for the Chief of Police position and complies with 
Government Code 20636. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact in approving the updated salary schedules. 

ANALYSIS 

On July 8, 2020, the City Council adopted the ordinance amending the Colma Municipal Code 
Section 1.03.040 and aligned the Chief of Police position to be an unrepresented, at-will, 
regular, exempt employee, without an individual employment agreement. During the same 
meeting, the City Council adopted the resolution setting the new proposed salary schedule as 
follows: 

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

Hourly $82.57 $86.70 $91.04 $94.68 $98.26 

Monthly $14,312.13 $15,028 $15,780.27 $16,411.20 $17,031.73 

Item #4



Staff Report re Salary Schedule Update – Chief of Police  Page 2 of 2 

For CalPERS compliance reasons, the updating of the Town’s salary schedule was postponed 
until the hiring of the new Chief of Police. The Chief of Police recruitment is coming to a close 
and the Town’s Salary Schedule must be updated with the steps and pay rates above. The 
updated Salary Schedule can be found as Exhibit A to the Resolution. 

Reasons for the Recommended Action/Findings  

Updating the Town’s Salary Schedule will comply with Title 2 of the California Code of 
Regulations, section 570.5, Government Code Section 20636, and 2019-20 CalPERS audit 
finding.  

Council Adopted Values 

Approving the updated salary schedule is an example of the City Council’s integrity through 
enhancing transparency.   
 
CONCLUSION 

The attached Exhibit A to the Resolution is an updated salary schedule in accordance with 
Resolution 2020-32, Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, section 570.5 and  
Government Code 20636 pertaining to public employee compensation. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution  
o Exhibit A to Resolution: Updated Salary Schedule 

 
 



Res 2020-##, Salary Schedule Update – Chief of Police Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE COLMA SALARY SCHEDULE FOR CHIEF OF POLICE 
POSITION 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does resolve as follows. 

1. Background

(a) On July 8, 2020, the City Council adopted resolution 2020-32 to establish the Chief of 
Police steps and pay rates with the hiring of the new Chief of Police; 

(b) The Town’s Salary Schedule, effective July 1, 2020, did not need to be updated until the 
hiring of the new Chief of Police; 

(c) With the conclusion of the Chief of Police recruitment, the Town’s Salary Schedule needs 
to be updated to complay with Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, section 570.5 and 
Government Code Section 20636; 

2. Findings and Order.

(a) That the City Council of the Town of Colma hereby adopts the pay schedules for Town 
employees attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, with an 
effective date as stated in each pay schedule and listed in the table above.  

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



Res 2020-##, Salary Schedule Update – Chief of Police Page 2 of 2 

Certification of Adoption 
I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on November 12, 2020, by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
Diana Colvin 
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez 
Helen Fisicaro 
Joanne F. del Rosario 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



Exhibit ATown of Colma Pay Schedule (Effective Date @ November 12, 2020) 
Adopted November 12, 2020

1 2 3 4 5 6

Position Title  Step 1  Step 2  Step 3  Step 4  Step 5  Step 6 
 Ord/Reso 
Number 

 Add'l 
Incentive  Payroll Ref 

Elected Officials (Monthly Compensation)
Mayor & City Council 961.00       ORD 784

Regular/Casual/Temporary Employees (hourly rate, compensated on a biweekly basis)
Accounting Technician 39.72         41.71         43.79         45.99         48.29         - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8acct

Administrative Services Director 74.65         78.38         82.30         86.41         90.73         - Reso 2019-16 (11) 8acm

Administrative Technician I 37.07         38.93         40.88         42.92         45.06         - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at1

Administrative Technician II 38.93         40.88         42.92         45.06         47.31         - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at2

Administrative Technician III 38.93         40.88         42.92         45.06         47.31         49.68         Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at3

City Clerk 49.68         52.16         54.77         57.50         60.37         - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8clrk1

City Manager 107.40       Reso 2019-57 (9) mgr

Community Service Officer 36.16         37.97         39.87         41.87         43.96         - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8cso

Executive Assistant to Chief of Police 38.93         40.88         42.92         45.06         47.31         49.68         Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at3

Facility Attendant 16.46         17.28         18.14         19.05         - -             Reso 2019-13 (11) 8fa

Human Resources Manager 54.42         57.14         60.00         63.00         66.15         - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8hrm

Intern 17.00         19.00         21.00         23.00         25.00         Reso 2020-07 intr

Maintenance Technician I 36.25         38.06         39.96         41.96         44.06         - Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mt1

Maintenance Technician II 38.06         39.96         41.96         44.06         46.27         - Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mt2

Maintenance Technician III 38.06         39.96         41.96         44.06         46.27         48.58         Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mt3

Police Chief 82.57         86.70         91.04         94.68         98.26         Reso 2020-32 (1)(11) chief

Police Commander 73.32         76.98         80.84         84.88         89.12         Reso 2019-16 (1)(11) 8pcmd

Police Dispatcher / Clerk 45.25         46.51         47.77         49.02         50.27         Reso 2019-15 (6)(4)(11) clerical

Police Dispatcher/Records Supervisor 54.53         56.04         57.57         59.08         60.60         Reso 2019-15 (2)(4)(11) supervisor

Police Officer - Reserve 50.64         Ord 773 pdres

Police Officer 1 50.64         53.17         55.83         58.62         - Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8po1

Police Officer 2 52.66         55.30         58.06         60.97         - Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8po2

Police Officer 3 53.68         56.37         59.18         62.14         - Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8po3

Police Sergeant 1 64.18         65.51         66.86         70.56         - Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8sgt1

Police Sergeant 2 66.75         68.13         69.53         73.39         - Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8sgt2

Police Sergeant 3 68.02         69.43         70.86         74.81         - Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8sgt3

Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 46.29         48.60         51.03         53.59         56.26         Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mts

Recreation Coordinator 36.15         37.96         39.86         41.85         43.94         Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8recc

Recreation Leader 13.00         13.65         14.33         15.06         Reso 2019-13 (11) 8rl

Recreation Manager 43.20         45.37         47.63         50.01         52.51         Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) recmgr

Senior Recreation Leader 16.46         17.28         18.14         19.05         Reso 2019-13 (11) 8rls

Student Aide 13.00         13.65         14.33         15.06         Reso 2020-07

Additional Incentive Summary of Effective Ordinance and Resolution
(1) Ord 773 Reinstatement of Reserve Officer Program - up to 4 Reserve Officers (Adopted 12/13/2017)
(2) Ord 784 City Council Compensation (Adopted 11/14/2018)
(3) Reso 2004-36 Establishment of Police Recruit Program - 95% of Police Officer Step 1 (5/12/2004)
(4) Reso 2019-13 Increase Part-Time Recreation Compensation (Adopted 04/10/2019)
(5) Reso 2019-14 2% COLA for POA from Jun 28, 2020 to Dec 26, 2020 (Adopted 4/10/2019)

Reso 2019-15 2% COLA for CRA from Jun 28, 2020 to Dec 26, 2020 (Adopted 4/10/2019)
(6) Reso 2019-16 2% COLA for Unrepresented from Jun 28, 2020 to Dec 26, 2020 (Adopted 4/10/2019)
(7) Reso 2019-56 Chief of Police Contract Amendment 5 (Adopted 12/11/2019)
(8) Reso 2019-57 City Manager Contract Amendment 3 (Adopted 12/11/2019)
(9) Reso 2020-07 Addition of Intern and Student Aide Classifications and Compensations (Adopted 2/26/2020)

(10) Reso 2020-32 Reclassify Chief of Police employment from contract to appointed by City Manager (CC Mtg 7/08/2020)
(11)

This position may receive a 2.5%  incentive for Back-up CAD Administrator
These positions may receive $120 per week stand-by pay
These positions receive an in kind uniform  allowance of $68.67 per pay period
This position receives a $300 monthly automobile allowance
These positions may received 5% out of class pay
These positions may receive retention pay (2.5% @ 10 years; 5.0% @ 20 years)

These positions receive a $1,025 per year uniform allowance 
This position receives a 5.0%  incentive for CAD Administrator
These positions receive an additional 5% Holiday Pay
These positions receive a $774.73 per year uniform allowance
These positions may receive a 5% incentive for Acting Commander, Acting Sergeant, 
Officer in Charge, Training Officer, and/or Detective

2020.11.12 (20‐21) Chief



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report Safe Storage Ordinance Page 1 of 4 
November 12, 2020 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Bob Lotti, Interim Chief of Police 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: November 12, 2020 
SUBJECT: Safe Storage of Firearms Ordinance  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and waive further reading of the following: 

ORDINANCE ADDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SUBCHAPTER 2.09 TO REQUIRE SAFE 
STORAGE OF FIREARMS IN A RESIDENCE  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

At the July 8, 2020 City Council meeting, a presentation was made by a member of the public 
regarding firearms safety and a request was made to study an ordinance that requires certain 
measures for the safe storage and handling of firearms.  This request was made and is 
supported by data that shows that firearms are responsible for a considerable number of deaths 
both nationally and locally. 

Subsequent to that presentation, staff researched and found that in addition to the County of 
San Mateo, several cities within San Mateo County have also adopted such an ordinance.  On 
October 14, 2020, staff presented a study session regarding the proposed ordinance and was 
given direction to bring an ordinance regarding gun safety back for consideration.  

Therefore, staff recommends that the City Council introduce and adopt an ordinance that 
requires residents of the Town to adhere to important safety rules for the storage and handling 
of firearms kept within residences. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Not more than $1,000 for outreach and materials. 

BACKGROUND 

Effective March 26, 2019, the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors adopted an ordinance 
that requires the safe storage of firearms by residents living in unincorporated areas within San 

Item #5



Staff Report Safe Storage Ordinance Page 2 of 4 
November 12, 2020 

Mateo County.  Subsequent to the ordinance being adopted, several cities within the County 
also adopted similar ordinances, including Hillsborough, Foster City, San Carlos and Redwood 
City.  On July 8, 2020, a member of the public requested that the Council consider such an 
ordinance.  Based on Council direction, staff presented a study session to the Council and is 
now presenting the staff report recommending that the Council introduce and adopt the 
attached Ordinance in an effort to improve the safe storage of firearms within the Town. 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

None. 

ANALYSIS 

The attached Ordinance defines a firearm, locked container, trigger lock, and residence and has 
the following requirements regardless of whether or not the firearm is loaded: 

All firearms stored in a residence, as defined in the Ordinance, must be stored in a locked 
container as defined in the California Penal Code (§16850), or disabled with a California 
Department of Justice approved trigger locking device. 

Failure to store the firearm, as defined in the Ordinance, is an infraction and a person guilty of 
said infraction is subject to a fine.  The person may be fined for each day that the firearm is 
unsecured. If the Ordinance is adopted, it can be enforced through the administrative citation 
process versus general enforcement and criminal prosecution. 

For the purposes of this Ordinance, a firearm as defined under §16520 of the California Penal 
Code. 

A locked container is defined under California Penal Code § 16850.  For the purposes of this 
Ordinance, a locked container does not include a bag or other container made of fabric or other 
penetrable material, such as a regular purse, backpack, or gym bag. 

A residence means any structure intended or used for human habitation, including but not 
limited to houses, condominiums, rooms, accessory dwelling units, motels, hotels, single room 
occupancy units, time shares, recreational vehicles, and other vehicles where human habitation 
occurs. 

A trigger lock means a device that is listed on the California Department of Justice Bureau of 
Firearms  roster of approved firearms safety devices and that is identified as appropriate for 
that firearm by reference to either the manufacturer and model of the firearm or to the physical 
characteristics of the firearm that match those listed on the roster for use with the device under 
California Penal Code §23635. 

The trigger locking devices and/or cable locks for firearms can be purchased for $10.00 apiece. 
Trigger locks are not recommended for loaded firearms (per manufacturer recommendations) 
and certain firearms cannot be rendered safe with them (lever action and single shot firearms). 



Staff Report Safe Storage Ordinance Page 3 of 4 
November 12, 2020 

Reasons for Considering a Safe Storage of Firearms Ordinance 

The safe storage of firearms in the home, whether with trigger lock devices or gun safes, 
reduces the risk of firearm related injury and death.  This is especially important when the gun 
owner is not at home or when others are in the home and the firearm is accessible to them.  In 
addition to reducing accidental injuries and death, having the firearm safely secured reduces 
the likelihood that it will be used for criminal activity or to commit suicide.  In homes where 
children are present, the safe storage of firearms is imperative to protect the lives of those 
children. 

According to a 2008 report published in the New England Journal of Medicine, living in a home 
where firearms are kept increased an individual’s death by homicide between 40% to 170%.  
Other studies support this data, including a 2004 national study related to gun violence and 
homicide. 

In addition to the statistics above, other studies show that children are at particular risk of 
firearm related injury or death when the firearms are not safely stored in the home.  Most of 
the accidental deaths and injuries to children from firearms occur in the home and with a 
firearm that is left unsecured.   

In a poll of persons turning in firearms for destruction at a San Mateo County gun buyback 
event, between 27% and 60% of the people turning in firearms did so for safety reasons.  
Nearly half of those who responded to the poll did not know how to safely store a firearm.  

While any discussion about firearms can evoke an emotional response in this day and age, it is 
important to understand that the adoption of the proposed Ordinance in no way restricts the 
right to own or store a firearm in a residence in Colma.  The proposed Ordinance merely 
requires that the firearms are stored safely in order to reduce both intentional and accidental 
injury and/or death from these firearms.  In addition, the Ordinance mimics in many ways the 
California Penal Code language as it applies to the safe storage of firearms.   

Application and Enforcement Concept 

Based on feedback received from the Council at the study session on October 14, 2020, staff 
recommends the following application and enforcement action, along with the use of the Town 
website to promote the safe storage of firearms: 

It is recommended that enforcement of this Ordinance occur when police officers or other Town 
staff are at a defined residence for another legal purpose and come across a firearm not stored 
in accordance with the law.  No research will be conducted by police officers to specifically 
enforce the provisions of this Ordinance unless they are on scene and observe a violation. 

Staff also recommends that the Town provide appropriate links to the State of California, 
Department of Justice (DOJ) website that includes data related to approved DOJ locking and 
storage devices for firearm safety.  In addition, staff recommends that the police department 
have a supply of such devices available for distribution.  Distribution would be limited to 



Staff Report Safe Storage Ordinance Page 4 of 4 
November 12, 2020 

persons contacted who are in violation of the Ordinance and who do not have access to such a 
device to secure the firearm in question.  

Council Adopted Values 

Adopting a safe storage of firearms ordinance is the responsible action, for it can save lives 
from intentional and accidental deaths and/or injuries. 

Alternatives 

• The City Council could direct staff to lead a public safety campaign related to firearms
safety in-lieu of the proposed Ordinance.  Staff would recommend that a professional
trainer provide services related to any public safety campaign, which likely would come
with a cost to the Town.

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and adopt the attached Safe Storage of 
Firearms Ordinance in an effort to curb injuries and death associated with firearms use and 
provide direction to staff. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Safe Storage of Firearms Ordinance 



Ordinance No. ___ - Safe Storage of Firearms in a Residence Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE ADDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SUBCHAPTER 2.09 TO REQUIRE 
SAFE STORAGE OF FIREARMS IN A RESIDENCE 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. RECITALS. 

(a) Having a loaded or unlocked gun in the home is associated with an increased risk of 
gun-related injury and death. According to a 2008 report published in the New England Journal 
of Medicine, living in a home where guns are kept increased an individual’s risk of death by 
homicide by between 40% and 170%. Similarly, a 2004 national study determined that the 
presence of guns in the home increased an individual’s risk of death by homicide by 90%. 

(b) Firearm injuries have a significant public health impact. According to a 2015 study, 
researchers conservatively estimate that gun violence costs the American economy at least 
$229 billion every year, including $8.6 billion in direct expenses such as those for emergency 
and medical care. In California, the direct costs of hospital use for firearm assault injuries alone 
was estimated at $87.4 million in 2010. 65% of these costs were borne by taxpayers. 

(c) Children are particularly at risk of injury and death from firearms when firearms are not 
safely secured in their own homes or in homes they visit. According to national data, children 
and young adults (24 years of age and under) constitute 38% of all firearm deaths and non-
fatal injuries. More than 75% of guns used in suicide attempts and unintentional injuries of 
children and young adults (0-19 years of age) were stored in the residence of the victim, a 
relative, or a friend. 89% of accidental shooting deaths among children occur in the home, and 
most of these deaths occur when children are playing with an unsecured loaded gun in their 
parents’ absence. 

(d) Applying trigger locks or using lock boxes when storing firearms in the home reduces 
the risk of firearm injury and death. Keeping a firearm locked when it is not being carried 
ensures that it cannot be accessed and used by others without the owner’s knowledge or 
permission. This simple measure significantly decreases the risk that the gun will be used to 
commit suicide, homicide, or inflict injury, whether intentionally or unintentionally. Safe storage 
measures have a demonstrated protective effect in homes with children and teenagers where 
guns are stored. 

(e) More local community action is needed to prevent gun violence. In San Mateo County, 
there have been 301 gun-related deaths over the past 10 years. According to data collected in 
2018 by the Citizens for a San Mateo County Gun Buy Back from participants at two separate 
gun buy back events, a majority of respondents reported “hiding [the gun] in a discrete 
location” and/or “keeping it unloaded” as a safety measure, even though these methods are not 
generally considered safe storage. A large number of respondents (27% in May 2018 and 60% 
in December 2018) reported that they surrendered the firearms for “safety reasons,” and nearly 
half of respondents indicated that they did not know how to properly store an inherited firearm. 

Attachment A



Ordinance No. ___ - Safe Storage of Firearms in a Residence Page 2 of 4 

ARTICLE 2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the foregoing recitals and the staff report presented 
herewith are true and correct and are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings of the City 
Council as if fully set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 3. CMC SUBCHAPTER 2.09 ADDED. 

A new subchapter 2.09, Safe Storage of Firearms in a Residence, is hereby added to Chapter 2, 
Prohibited Activities, to read as follows: 

Subchapter 2.09: Safe Storage of Firearms in a Residence 

2.09.010 Application of Subchapter. 

The provisions of this subchapter shall apply within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Town of 
Colma. 

2.09.020 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this subchapter, the following words shall have the meaning set forth herein: 

(a) “Firearm” means a firearm as defined in California Penal Code Section 16520. 

(b) “Locked Container” means a locked container, as defined in California Penal Code, 
Section 16850, listed on the California Department of Justice Bureau of Firearms roster of 
approved firearm safety devices. For purposes of this subchapter, a locked container does not 
include a bag or other container made of fabric or other penetrable material, such as a regular 
purse, backpack, or gym bag. 

(c) “Residence” means any structure intended or used for human habitation, including but 
not limited to, houses, condominiums, rooms, accessory dwelling units, motels, hotels, single 
room occupancy units, time shares, recreational vehicles, and other vehicles where human 
habitation occurs. 

(d) “Trigger lock” means a trigger lock that is listed on the California Department of Justice’s 
roster of approved firearms safety devices and that is identified as appropriate for that firearm 
by reference to either the manufacturer and model of the firearm or to the physical 
characteristics of the firearm that match those listed on the roster for use with the device under 
California Penal Code Section 23635. 

2.09.030 Safe Storage of Firearms in a Residence Required. 

(a) Except when carried on the person, no person shall keep a firearm in any residence 
unless the firearm is stored in a locked container or is disabled with a trigger lock. 

(b) To encourage reporting of lost or stolen firearms, a person who complies with California 
Penal Code Section 25250 by reporting the loss or theft of a firearm they own or possess to a 
local law enforcement agency within five days from the time they knew or reasonably should 



Ordinance No. ___ - Safe Storage of Firearms in a Residence Page 3 of 4 

have known the firearm had been lost or stolen shall not be prosecuted for violation of 
subsection (a). 

2.09.040 Enforcement. 

A violation of any provision of this subchapter is an infraction, punishable as set forth in 
subchapter 1.05 of the Colma Municipal Code.  It can also be enforced through the 
Administrative Citation process contained at Colma Municipal Code Section 2.01.090(c).  

ARTICLE 4. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

ARTICLE 5. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and 15060(c)(3) (the 
activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to 
the environment, directly or indirectly. 

ARTICLE 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 



Ordinance No. ___ - Safe Storage of Firearms in a Residence Page 4 of 4 

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ___ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on November 12, 2020 and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on _____________, 2020 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
Diana Colvin 
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez 
Helen Fisicaro 
Joanne F. del Rosario 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



Staff Report – Brown Act Refresher/Update Page 1 of 1 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney  
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: November 12, 2020 
SUBJECT: Brown Act Refresher and Update 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session only.  No action will be taken at this meeting.  However, City 
Councilmembers are welcome to ask questions and provide comments during or after the 
presentation.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City Attorney will provide a presentation regarding updates to the Brown Act, including 
rules on non-agenda items, best practices, and other updates recently enacted by the State 
legislature. 

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 

It is responsible for the City Council to receive a refresher/update on and to be made aware 
of changes to the Brown Act in order to ensure legal compliance. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council receive the Brown Act presentation. 

Item #6




	11.12.20 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations
	2. Minutes - Regular Meeting 10.28.20
	3. Report of Checks Paid - October 2020
	4. Salary Schedule Update - Chief of Police
	A. Resolution- Salary Schedule Update Chief of Police
	Exhibit A to Reso


	5. Safe Storage of Firearms Ordinance
	A. Ordinance - Storage of Firearms

	6. Brown Act Refresher and Update

